
 

 

 

Governance Committee 
 
Thursday 6 April 2023 at 2.00 pm 
 
Town Hall, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Grocutt (Chair)  
Councillor Sue Alston (Deputy Chair)  
Councillor Penny Baker  
Councillor Christine Gilligan Kubo  
Councillor Dianne Hurst  
Councillor Mark Jones  
Councillor Mary Lea  
Councillor Mike Levery  
Councillor Bryan Lodge  
Councillor Joe Otten  
Councillor Mick Rooney  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Governance Committee is leading on work to transition to a committee system 
of governance from May 2022. It is a politically proportionate Committee which will 
be tasked with oversight of the transitional work and will approve the 
recommendations to be made to Full Council. 
 
The Committee will be outward facing. The Council will not be working in isolation on 
this project but will seek input from outside the organisation, ensuring citizens are 
engaged and are provided with opportunities to help shape this programme of work 
The Council will also be engaging the professional support of agencies such as the 
Local Government Association, the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny and 
Monitoring Officers from other local authorities which have recently transitioned or 
are about to transition to a Committee system. This will ensure the Council is 
supported through this period and learns from best practice to ensure that the 
system implemented in Sheffield responds to the needs of our City. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to 
Governance Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the 
Chair. Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information 
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
PLEASE NOTE: Meetings of the Governance Committee have to be held as physical 
meetings. If you would like to attend the meeting, you must register to attend by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk at least 2 clear days in advance of the date of 
the meeting. This is necessary to facilitate the management of attendance at the 
meeting to maintain social distancing. In order to ensure safe access and to protect 
all attendees, you will be asked to wear a face covering (unless you have an 
exemption) at all times when moving about within the venue.  
 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting. You can order tests online to be delivered to your 
home address, or you can collect tests from a local pharmacy. Further details of 
these tests and how to obtain them can be accessed here - Order coronavirus 
(COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). We are unable to 
guarantee entrance to observers, as priority will be given to registered speakers. 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Jay Bell email 
jay.bell@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=632


 

 

 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 

6 APRIL 2023 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
  
2.   Apologies for Absence  
  
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public. 
 

 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 8) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

 
5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 20) 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee 

held on 9 February, 2023. 
 

 

 
6.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public. 
 

 

 
7.   6 Month Review of Governance Arrangements (Pages 21 - 68) 
 Report of the Interim General Counsel and the Director of 

Policy and Democratic Engagement. 
 

 

 
8.   Date of Next Meeting  
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on a date 

and time to be agreed. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 6



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance by emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

 

Governance Committee 
 

Meeting held 9 February 2023 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Sue Alston (Deputy Chair), Christine Gilligan Kubo, 

Dianne Hurst, Mark Jones, Joe Otten, Sioned-Mair Richards (Substitute 
Member) and Andrew Sangar (Substitute Member) 
 

 
  
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Penny Baker, 
Julie Grocutt, Mary Lea, Mike Levery, Bryan Lodge and Mick Rooney.  
  

   
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude 
the press and public. 
  

   
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
  

   
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings held on 8 December 
2022 were agreed as an accurate record. 
  

   
5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 The Committee received questions from a member of the public, prior 
to the meeting. It was noted that those questions and responses 
provided by the Head of Policy and Partnerships would be included in 
the minutes. 
  

5.2 Ruth Hubbard 
  

  1. In my public questions at the 6th October meeting I asked about the 
money spent on Involve, what appeared to have gone wrong, and 
where was the promised final report. I was told this would be circulated 
to stakeholders within 2 weeks.  It’s now 17 weeks later and no report? 
  

We can only apologise for the delay on this.  
  
As suggested at the last Governance Committee meeting, we 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 2 of 11 
 

want to make the best use of Involve’s expertise to improve 
SCC’s capabilities and expertise but over the last year, we’ve 
not had the capacity to make full use of this and take it forward.  
Involve have been hugely patient and remain committed to 
taking the work forward with us, maximising the insights from 
their work with partners, stakeholders and SCC officers last 
year. 
  
To move this forward and ensure that it has a key role in our 
improvement journey, we have asked Involve to bring together 
their analysis from the work that stakeholders directed them to 
last year – including assessing case studies of involvement 
activity in the city and the workshops with stakeholders – and 
offering some direct conclusions or recommendations for what 
the Council needs to do improve practise and genuinely embed 
citizen involvement in SCC’s way of working.  This is likely to 
add to some of the findings from the LGA’s Peer Challenge, 
Street Trees Inquiry and aspects of the Race Equality 
Commission final report. 
  
We will share the draft report for comment to the stakeholders 
that contributed and Governance Committee Members. 
  

  2. It has consistently been stated that the governance review would 
focus on assessing early practice against design principles.   
  
This does not appear to be what is shaping the review.  For example, 
in a 20 page report there is only one side that addresses a very small 
part of the design principle work, and this is also based on a ‘marking 
your own homework’ approach - for example, the vast majority of 
councillors and officers tell us that the council is 'democratic' - that's a 
surprise - though citizens beg to differ.   
  
There are no basic or agreed performance measures, benchmarks, 
standards, outputs or outcomes (with the possibility of appropriate 
supporting data) against which any of the design principle work can be 
assessed.  In what is here, 'beliefs' are simply asserted. 
  
Whilst it is quite amusing to learn things like more than a third of 
officers and councillors don’t currently BELIEVE the council is ‘open 
and trustworthy’, for example, this is all really pretty meaningless isn’t it 
(though maybe should be ringing alarm bells)?   It IS quite funny but 
really it’s all fairly empty and meaningless twaddle.  Without agreed 
ideas or measures against which we can think about and assess the 
quality of things like ‘openness’, ‘trustworthiness’, or ‘democracy’ etc. 
(for the council constitution and governance system) the council lays 
itself open to the accusation that it simply wants to assert its own spin, 
not hold itself to account in any way on its governance, and does not 
wish to pursue learning and improvement planning. 
  

Page 10



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 3 of 11 
 

Before he left Alex Polak presented to the committee some early 
thinking on establishing benchmarks for the review against design 
principles.  Whilst this was only a start, and very basic - I for one 
commented in a public question that they obviously needed a lot of 
work (I didn’t think they were good) and was happy to contribute if 
anyone was interested.   But this early work on basic benchmarks and 
performance measures has simply disappeared.  
  
When will members and officers undertake some serious work - 
preferably with stakeholders having actual influence too - establishing 
some basic performance measures and benchmarks (and to establish 
baselines as appropriate) so it can assess its governance 
structures/constitution, culture and practices (and to track 
improvements), according to its own stated commitments?  The current 
big mismatches (that have been drawn to the attention of the 
committee) between its design principle work and its constitution and 
governance practice suggest that this work might be fruitful.  (Some of 
this work was effectively already started by a range of stakeholders 
very early on but the Governance Committee chucked this out the first 
time.) 
  
(At the same time, random bits of ‘data’ are thrown in.  For example we 
are told there have been 67 public questions but apropos what? - is 
there an aim, then, in relation to public questions? Is 67 more or less 
than previously? Are they from a small group? Is there diversity - do we 
want more? What is the meaning or purpose of this random ‘data’ 
thrown in?  Why is it important or interesting - to what end?) 
  

This is a very fair challenge. It is true that as part of the 
introduction of the Committee System in 2022, some very initial 
work was done on some potential metrics connected to the 
Design Principles which were intended to help us understand 
and measure the development of the new governance model.  
These have not been developed further as was originally 
intended and thus it hasn’t been possible to use such metrics to 
gauge the impact of the system beyond some very simple output 
measures which don’t really provide insight into the quality and 
depth of how the Committee System is bedding in. 
  
The Governance Committee and officers recognise this and 
acknowledge that it is something we should have looked to 
develop, particularly to provide a baseline from which to 
measure progress. Therefore, recommendation 14 of the 
Governance Committee’s Review states that the development of 
a performance framework for the Committee System will be a 
priority for the coming year.  The Committee will want to 
consider approaches to doing this using the Design Principles 
as the overall framework. Involvement and ideas from 
stakeholders and communities will undoubtedly be welcomed to 
ensure that the measures are grounded in citizens’ expectations 

Page 11



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 4 of 11 
 

and ambitions of how our governance system should work for 
the city whilst being measurable and collectable. 
  

  3. As it is, the report (and review as a whole) is largely taken up with 
the internal, insular, operational, procedural and technocratic framing 
and concerns of officers and elected members.   
  
(Again, however, it is not clear what key objectives, ends or purpose 
much of this serves - which design principles might all this relate to or 
could some things be dealt with outside Committee perhaps?)  
  
This priority framing is partly to be expected because, of course, this is 
the approach to the ‘change’ mandate that the council has pretty much 
adopted throughout, because this kind of approach DOES reflect the 
priorities of the officer-elected member machine, because there is 
undoubtedly a lot of this kind of work that has been necessary, and 
because the committee has obviously found it very difficult to 
demonstrate it understands and can actually meaningfully respond to 
and include and prioritise citizen, community and stakeholder 
governance concerns (including repeatedly rejecting requests to 
approach the governance review as a joint exercise).   What are the 
current prospects and timescale for paying proper attention to, and 
operationalising in the council constitution and in its practices the 
widespread citizen, community, and stakeholder governance concerns 
from the biggest exercise anywhere of citizens rights to change the 
way our council works? 
  

We knew and stated as part of the transition to the Committee 
System in 2022 that the model that was implemented in May 
2022 would effectively be a starting point for the City Council.  
There has been a huge amount of learning for Members and 
officers in adapting to a very different model of decision making 
within a challenging financial context for SCC.   
  
We undoubtedly haven’t got everything right and the 6 Month 
Review was opportunity to resolve and address the more 
immediate challenges that Members, officers and citizens have 
experienced in the first phase of operating the system. The 
Review was explicitly not about a wholesale reform of a system 
which is still in its infancy and indeed, we want to embed and 
grow our Committee System over the coming years, refining and 
instilling it as part of SCC’s culture and ways of working. 
  
The Review has therefore identified a number of technical, 
operational and procedural improvements that could be made 
(should Governance Committee in April agree to recommend 
them to Full Council).  But, the broader message from the 
Review (recognised in the work Governance Committee want to 
lead next year and in the Governance Review Implementation 
Plan) is that there is much to do to move beyond structural and 

Page 12



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 5 of 11 
 

technical improvements and into more fundamental elements 
such as community involvement, policy development and 
review, developing Member and officer skills to really embed the 
new governance in SCC and the city. 

  
  4. Can you confirm that the ‘citizens’ graph on p.25 collates (just) 50 

citizen survey responses? I partly ask because I was someone who 
actually spent a couple of hours on the survey but did not finish it as I 
ran out of time, and I do not recall answering these questions directly.  I 
think this whole page should, anyway, be taken out of the report, for 
the reasons stated previously but also, at least in the citizens graph 
case, because with these vanishingly tiny numbers it cannot tell 
anyone anything at all and should not be presented as potentially doing 
so.  (Though I do note in all the five very broad categories not once do 
a majority of respondent citizens agree the principle is being 
demonstrated.) 
  

Yes, the data in the report is accurate and we received 50 
citizen responses and it is difficult to make any reliable 
quantitative conclusions from such small numbers. However, the 
qualitative content of the survey responses has been valuable 
and informed the Review work that the Governance Committee 
have undertaken. 
  
At such an early stage, the actual number of Sheffielders that 
have had direct interactions and experience of the new 
Committee System is relatively small (and something we need 
to improve on) but this probably means that it is harder for many 
people to express an informed view about the system itself. 
  
There is much to do to better connect citizens to the Committee 
System and any future reviews and perhaps we need to develop 
an effective way for citizens that do interact with the Committee 
System (eg. Public questions, attending a meeting, engaging 
through a Committee’s policy work) to provide feedback and 
insight into their experience so that we can continuously improve 
how we operate.  
  
We also need a much stronger focus on how we involve people 
as while surveys have value, there should be a greater 
emphasis on conversations and connecting through the city’s 
wealth of stakeholders and community networks in future. 
  

  5. Why does the committee/officers think it has failed so badly to 
engage any decent number of citizens, communities and stakeholders 
for its governance review?  For myself, after many hundreds of hours 
(indeed, thousands of hours if one includes prior to the referendum) 
trying to make substantial contributions (and most often trying to 
present views, experiences and ideas from many thousands of people) 
but to no discernible effect at all, I see little point, usefulness or value in 

Page 13



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 6 of 11 
 

continuing to devote so much thought, energy, voluntary time and 
expertise to the council.   
  
I could not endorse the review and survey or encourage people and 
groups to engage or fill it in whilst it is such a pointless waste of 
time.  But at the same time I am constantly contacted by, and in touch 
with, individuals, groups and stakeholders who want to talk about these 
issues.  And I am working on a national research project with a special 
focus on Glasgow and Sheffield on ‘democratising local governance’. 
So I have been talking to 16 community and campaigning groups in 
Sheffield on local governance issues.  Why is it possible for me as an 
individual to have engaged with 16 grassroots groups on local 
governance but it seems to have been impossible for our council to 
create the kinds of relationships and networks for input into its 
governance review so that, in the report for this committee, there is 
pretty much - effectively - no input.  Why has the Governance 
Committee not even used its own ‘toolkit’ that it says all policy 
committees should be using (even though none are).  Is it not at least 
incumbent to be setting a good example?  What should happen now 
given, effectively, there is an absence of meaningful citizen/stakeholder 
review input at this stage?  On the other hand is it fair to request 
anyone's time for this if a willingness to make any real shifts cannot be 
demonstrated?  Again, why does the council think it is failing so badly 
in this? 
  

As in Q5 and earlier questions, we know there is a lot we need 
to do – through the committee system but also through the 
whole council - to be much better engaging and involving 
communities in everything the Council does with the city and our 
communities. 
  
All citizen contributions to the Review were valued by the 
Committee but we have much to do to increase citizen 
awareness and involvement to our committee system and make 
stronger connection to stakeholder and community networks in 
order to have conversations with Sheffielders about our decision 
making and democracy.  
  
What is clear from Members and views expressed in the Review 
is that we have not made significant strides towards greater 
citizen involvement with and through committees themselves 
since May 2022. However, citizen involvement happens through 
a whole range of formal and informal channels across the 
council and the city, not just directly through the work of Policy 
Committees. We certainly need to be better about emphasising 
and evidencing where such involvement is taking / has taken 
place. However, Governance Committee are certainly 
committed to increasing involvement of citizens in our 
Committees and are recommending that they give dedicated 
focus to this issue in the coming year. 

Page 14



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 7 of 11 
 

  
  6.  I endorse the view that there appears to have been improvement in 

the last year or so in the ‘tone’ of discussion at council meetings and 
that - in combination with No Overall Control - cross-party dialogue is 
publicly visible.  Again, it would be best, however, if there were a 
couple or a few agreed measures to properly document/record this 
progress and for identifying gaps or further improvements.   
  
Much big stuff remains entirely unaddressed.  For example  
a) SCC has created the largest and most unwieldy committee system 
in the country (despite govt guidance and despite what has happened 
in the Wirral, let alone us repeatedly flagging it) yet this major issue 
seems to be pretty much nowhere for review purposes (and though it 
clearly relates to design principles as well as things ‘going a bit wrong’ 
e.g. issues falling between stools/parks is a good example).  There 
have also been an unbelievable number of emergency/extra meetings - 
when pretty much NONE should be happening - why is this? 
b) Not all councillors are on policy committees, this is not clearly or 
properly recorded (fundamental to design principles and the vote for 
change), and is geographically skewed.  And the one Conservative 
councillor is excluded yet just about 1 in 5 who voted - across the 
whole city -  voted Tory when he was elected.  design principles are 
relevant here too and it looks like a 'democratic' scandal. 
c) There is no attempt, either, to review LACs against design principles 
- they always were, and remain, top-down/very much “council-owned” 
and not particularly forward thinking (everyone knows this but it is not 
just me saying this, it is also said by the Director of the Centre for 
Governance and Scrutiny for example).  Public questions are also 
going wrong at some LACs and in some ways mirror problems at 
council/committee meetings (that I have written some detail on 
previously and that I hope the review has picked up though it's not 
obvious this has been)   
But LACs also deserve a review of their own though in current 
circumstances I don't think it should be the council doing it. 
d) Early on there was quite a bit of talk about the need for culture 
change by the Gov committee. What's the specific agenda here, how is 
this being driven and/or tracked / measured etc? 
  

Its positive to hear that there are visible developments in the 
ways of working through the Committee System, particularly at 
such an early stage. As the Governance Committee’s review 
emphasises, we are keen to see continuous improvement to our 
governance and the Committee are keen to sustain their role in 
supporting the further development of the Committee System in 
the year ahead. 
  
The Governance Committee agreed that LACs were out of 
scope for 6 Month Review, apart from considering the 
relationship between LACs and Policy Committees.  As the 
feedback in the Review suggests, there is work to do to increase 

Page 15



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 8 of 11 
 

understanding of the distinctions and respective responsibilities 
of LACs and Policy Committees.  Further, Governance 
Committee will consider a recommendation that Full Council 
looks at the potential for further empowering LACs, specifically 
around devolving decision-making on some transport and 
highways schemes. 
  

   
6.   
 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW - ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS AND NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The Committee received a presentation from the Interim Director of 
Legal and Governance, David Hollis. The report updated Members on 
the progress of the 6-month review of governance arrangements. It 
sets out the activity carried out during the ‘Engagement’ Phase of the 
review, detailed the findings from the Engagement, identified key areas 
for action in the next, ‘Action Planning’ Phase of the review. 
  

6.2 The Policy and Improvement Officer, Emily Standbrook-Shaw 
explained that appendix 1 of the report listed many areas of the system 
which may require change. The Committee were asked if that list 
targeted the right areas of the system and to identify any further areas 
for review. 
  

6.3 The Policy and Improvement Officer mentioned that they had received 
good levels of engagement from Officers and Members through the 
drop-in sessions. She added that the level of citizen engagement was 
lower than anticipated. 
  

6.4 The Chair of the meeting (Councillor Sue Alston) read out the 
recommendations from the report, for the Committee to reflect on whilst 
asking questions and making comments. 
  

6.5 Members of the Committee asked questions and made comments and 
the key points to note were: -  
  

6.6 A Member of the Committee raised concerns around the timetable and 
how close to the AGM (Annual Meeting of the Council) they were 
before having to put forward recommendations.  
  
The Interim Director of Legal and Governance, David Hollis explained 
that the AGM was not the last phase of this review and that any aspect 
of the review that needed further consideration will continue after the 
AGM. 
  
The Policy and Improvement Officer added that a timetable of meetings 
of the Governance Committee will be circulated to the Committee. 
  

6.7 A Member of the Committee asked if the AGM was the only meeting of 
Full Council where changes to the constitution can be made. 
  

Page 16



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 9 of 11 
 

The Interim Director of Legal and Governance confirmed that changes 
to the constitution could be carried out at any meeting of Full Council. 
  

6.8 A Member of the Committee asked how the review of Full Council, that 
was tasked to the Whips, would feed back into this review of 
governance arrangements. 
  
The Interim Director of Legal and Governance explained that the 
Governance Committee would receive a report once the Whips had 
recommendations from the review of the Full Council meeting. 
  

6.9 A Member of the Committee mentioned the importance of identifying 
key stages of the review, so the Committee had an action plan and 
knew what they were working towards in time of the next meetings of 
Full Council. 
  

6.10 A Member of the Committee referred to the list at appendix 1 which 
stated ‘Consider whether current Committee remits are appropriately 
balanced.’ The Member did not feel that this could be considered until 
the elections had taken place as following the results of the election, 
the administration may decide upon different Committees remits as to 
what was agreed at the AGM. 
  
Another Member of the Committee mentioned it would still be good 
practice to identify Committee remits, prior to the AGM. The 
administration may or may not agree with what was recommended by 
the Committee. 
  

6.11 A Member of the Committee stated they were disappointed with the 
reference to addressing the recommendations from the Involve report, 
as it looked like the activity around public engagement had been put to 
one side. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships, Laurie Brenan explained that this 
had been a capacity issue. He mentioned that public stakeholders were 
fundamental to this system and will be part of the process, therefore 
asked the Committee to not read that aspect as public engagement 
been put to one side. He added that the longer-term goal was for Policy 
Committees not being the only route for public participation. 
  

6.12 The Chair of the meeting (Councillor Sue Alston) mentioned that ‘public 
involvement’ should be added to the end of point 1 of ‘Committee 
Activity’ so that the line read as follows:- ‘Consider how we can create 
capacity in the system for Policy Committees to undertake more policy 
development, pre-decision scrutiny and public involvement.’ 

6.13 A Member of the Committee asked if the recommendations from the 
Involve report had been provided to the Committee. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships explained that report from involve 
will feature at a future meeting of the Governance Committee. 

Page 17



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 10 of 11 
 

  
6.14 A Member of the Committee raised the importance of Committees 

being adequately briefed and received papers in sufficient time. There 
also needed to be sufficient time, prior to a meeting, to engage with 
members of the public. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships mentioned this was an aspect 
that were being looked at as part of Officer training, so that they could 
provide Members with adequate support in the preparation of Council 
meetings. 
  

6.15 A Member of the Committee asked whether Local Area Committees 
(LACs) could be given greater decision-making responsibility. 
  
The Policy and Improvement Officer stated that the reference to LACs 
in the report were for Members to consider how they operated going 
forward, although this would be a piece of work that needed to be 
carried out beyond the review of governance arrangements. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships mentioned that he had attended 
the LAC Chairs group to discuss the relationship between LACs and 
Policy Committees. 
  

6.16 A Member of the Committee commented that the current process for 
referring issues from LACs the Policy Committees were slow, and that 
the 7 LAC Chairs following the AGM, needed to be aware of the 
importance of that role.  
  

6.17 A Member of the Committee stated they would like to see a climate 
impact assessment carried out and shown on Committee reports. 
  
The Improvement and Policy Officer mentioned that the intention was 
to re-name the heading ‘Impact Assessments’ and that climate would 
be part of that. 
  

  The Chair of the meeting (Councillor Sue Alton) stated that many 
aspects of the list reported at appendix 1 would need to be considered 
prior to the AGM and that this needed to be reviewed further as part of 
the Working Group. 
  

6.18 A Member of the Committee referred to previous discussions by the 
Committee around Co-opted Independent Members and how they 
could be an asset to the Committee. 
  
The Chair of the meeting (Councillor Sue Alston) mentioned that the 
Committee may want to invite witnesses to the Committee’s 
workshops, dependant on the topic being discussed at the time. 
  

6.19 RESOLVED:  That the Governance Committee: 
  

Page 18



Meeting of the Governance Committee 9.02.2023 

Page 11 of 11 
 

·       consider and note the findings from the Engagement Phase of 
the review. 

·       note that findings related to Full Council have been passed to 
the Full Council working group for consideration as part of their 
work. 

·       consider whether the issues identified for the Action Planning 
Phase of the Review are the right ones and; 

o   agree that those requiring a change to the system are 
taken forward to Governance Committee Action Planning 
Workshops 

o   agree that those requiring improvements to how we 
explain, communicate and support the system are 
actioned by officers, with progress reports back to 
Governance Committee at the appropriate time 

o   identify which issues can be actioned prior to the 
Council’s AGM in May 2023, and which will be actioned in 
the longer term   

o   consider how issues relating to the wider system, beyond 
the scope of this review are taken forwards. 

  
   
7.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

7.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee was schedule for 
the 2 March 2023. Although, this meeting may be cancelled as there 
were no current items to consideration. Therefore, the next meeting of 
the Committee would be 20 March 2023.  
  

   

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Policy Committee Report                                                        April 2022 

 

 
 

Report to Governance Committee 
 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Emily 
Standbrook-Shaw, Policy & Improvement Officer 
 
Tel:  0114 205 6272 

 
Report of: 
 

David Hollis, Interim General Counsel, James 
Henderson, Director of Policy & Democratic 
Engagement 

Report to: 
 

Governance Committee 

Date of Decision: 
 

6th April 2023 

Subject: 6 Month Review of Governance Arrangements. 
 
 

 
Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes x No   
 
If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (EIA 1153) 

Has appropriate consultation taken place? Yes x No   
 
Has a Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) been undertaken? Yes  No x  
 
 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No x  
 

 
Purpose of Report: 
 
This report seeks Governance Committee’s formal approval of its final report on 
the 6 Month Review of Governance Arrangements, incorporating the findings of the 
cross-party working group on the operation of Full Council. The final report is 
attached at Appendix 1 and sets out the Governance Committee’s findings and 
recommendations.  
 
Some of Governance Committee’s recommendations require a change to the 
Council’s constitution, and therefore need Full Council approval. The report asks 
Governance Committee to agree to submit the final report to Full Council, seeking 
approval of the recommendations and agreement to the required changes to the 
constitution. 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 10 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Governance Committee is asked to: 
 

A) Agree the final report and recommendations as attached at Appendix 
1, comprising recommendations from the 6 Month Review of 
Governance Arrangements and from the Full Council Working group, 
namely: 

 
1 To note that action to improve how we explain and support the 

Committee System is underway through the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan, and progress will be monitored by Governance 
Committee. 
 

2 The role of the Strategy & Resources Committee and senior officers in 
early identification of cross-cutting issues and directing them to the 
most appropriate Policy Committee needs to be re-emphasised – 
including the role of Strategy & Resources Committee in maintaining an 
oversight of Policy Committee work programmes. Guidance on this 
should be produced through the Governance Review Implementation 
Plan. 

3 As part of ongoing work to develop the role of LACs, consideration 
should be given to devolving decisions and budgets on minor local 
transport and highways issues to Local Area Committees. The Policy 
Committee should provide overall strategy within which local areas 
make decisions to meet local need; and remain the decision maker for 
strategic transport issues and major schemes. 

4 The remit of the Education, Children and Families Policy Committee 
should be expanded to clarify that it includes all the functions that are 
the statutory responsibility of the Director of Children’s Services. 

5 Where Policy Committees are developing regulatory policies, they shall 
form a working group with members of the relevant regulatory 
committee to inform the process. 

6 The Job Share Chair Protocol should be adhered to by co-chairs, and 
promoted amongst officers and members to help develop a greater 
understanding of the role. 
 

7 Co-chairing arrangements should not be permitted for sub-committees. 
 

8 Where there are co-chairs in place, only the member nominated to 
attend Strategy and Resources Committee should attend the Strategy 
and Resources briefing meetings. 
 

9 Substitutes should be permitted at S&R. Where the committee member 
is Chair of a Policy Committee the substitute must have sufficient 
knowledge of their committee's work, and political proportionality must 

Page 22



Page 3 of 10 

be maintained. 
 

10 Briefing practises must enable all members of a policy committee to be 
adequately briefed for formal decision making.  
All Members should also have the opportunity to develop their 
knowledge and engage in policy and work programme development.  
Committee Members and officers should work together to identify 
where it is appropriate for these briefings to be all member/whole 
committee/Chair, deputy, group spokesperson/political group. 
Guidance on this should be produced as part of the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan. 
 

11 Policy Committees should continue to meet formally 6 times a year, 
with informal space diarised on the month where no formal meetings 
take place. This should enable Committees to carry out policy 
development activities as per their work programmes. This should not 
add to Member and Officer workloads, but reduce the need for 
additional, ad hoc briefing sessions and workshops. 
 

12 Current guidance states that Policy Committees should only operate 
one task and finish group at a time. This should be revised to provide a 
more ‘enabling’ approach to policy development. Policy Committees 
should be able to carry out work as required, subject to sufficient officer 
and Member capacity. 
 

13 An action should be added to the Governance Review Implementation 
Plan, to develop and promote a ‘Policy Development Toolkit’ for officers 
and Members that sets out best practice for developing policy in a 
Committee System, to be used alongside the existing ‘Engagement 
Toolkit. 
 

14 Arrangements should be put in place that enable early conversations 
post-AGM, between Chairs, their Committees and Senior Officers, to 
develop work programmes that address corporate, service plan and 
Member priorities, resulting in a balanced programme of decision 
making, policy development and scrutiny & evaluation. Guidance for 
members and officers should be produced as part of the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan. 
 

15 Governance Committee should continue into 2023/24 as a forum for 
ongoing review and maintenance of the constitution and governance 
arrangements, as well as Member development.  

 
16 Governance Committee sets up task and finish groups to look at: 

Public Questions - ensuring the process for citizens to ask public 
questions is clear, that public questions are triaged in a way that directs 
them to the most appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to 
access. Considering processes for responding to public questions, 
ensuring a consistent approach that is fit for purpose in the Committee 
System.  
Citizen Engagement and Involvement – Consider how we can drive 

Page 23



Page 4 of 10 

progress in realising our ambitions for community involvement and 
engagement, taking learning from recent reviews including Involve, the 
LGA Peer Challenge, the Race Equality Commission Report. 
These task and finish groups will actively seek feedback from, and test 
proposals with, citizens and stakeholders; and report into the 
Governance Committee. 
 

      FULL COUNCIL MEETING OPERATION 
 
  Members Questions 

• Defined purpose of Members Questions at Full Council: 
Accountability, transparency and representation 

• A Chair should make it clear in what capacity they're responding 
to a question  

• Members' questions to a committee chair at Full Council should 
not be from a member of that committee. Policy committees 
should include a standing item for Members' questions (from 
members of the committee and for issues which are not already 
the subject of an item of business on the Committee agenda) 

• Ensure there is officer resource and time to produce quality 
answers to Members' Questions 

 
  Motions and Amendments 

• Introduce a limit of 400 words for Notices of Motion. 
Amendments should not seek to add more than 250 words. 

• Motions should be relevant and have a conclusion/clear 
requested outcome. Recognise that some Motions may be 
issues for debate and others might be opportunity to refer an 
issue to a Policy Committee  

• No reduction in the number of Notices or Motion – to retain 
opportunity to ensure smaller groups and independent members 
are able to submit them  

• Be more overt about what we do with Full Council outcomes 
referred to Policy Committees for consideration on their Work 
Programmes  

 
  Duration and agenda management 

• Retain current duration of 3.5 hrs plus time after guillotine to 
formally transact business 

• Give priority to public engagement items 
• Proactive work programming for Council meetings: regular 

discussion of forthcoming items with Whips to agree priorities 
for Full Council consider and management of business - e.g. 
through temporary suspension of certain Standing Orders to 
make time for debate. 

 
 Frequency of meetings, days & times  

• Ensure early awareness of the meeting calendar, so Members 
can arrange time off etc . 

• A regular day and time for Full Council meetings 

Page 24



Page 5 of 10 

• Frequency of Full Council to be determined by Full Council 
 

  New standard items for Council 
• Utilise existing provisions for 'Scrutiny' type items:  
• CPR 5.7 (k) - "receive any presentations on matters of 

significant interest to the City" (to include, for example, from 
Strategic City Partners, SYMCA Mayor, Director of Public 
Health) 

• See also proactive work programme for Full Council 
 

  Voting  
• Principle of conducting electronic voting with appropriate pace 
• Retain ability to vote in parts (CPR 18.3 refers to “in exceptional 

circumstances”) see also word limit on Motions and 
Amendments 

• Continue to use no dissent ('agreed') and show of hands where 
appropriate  

• Lord Mayor announces results and we publish voting outcomes 
for transparency 

 
 
 

B) Agree that Full Council is recommended to: 
1. Approve the findings and recommendations of the Governance 

Review. 
2. Note that action is underway to implement recommendations 

1,2,6,11,13 and 16, and elements of 10 and 14 through the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan 

3. Agree the necessary changes to the constitution to implement 
recommendations 3,4,5,7,8,9,10,12,14 and 15 and proposed changes to 
the operation of Full Council Meetings 

4. Determine whether Full Council should change meeting frequency 
from the current approach of 6 ordinary meetings, plus Annual 
General Meeting plus Budget Council; or reduce the number to 4 
ordinary meetings, plus Annual General Meeting plus Budget Council. 

 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Report to Governance Committee – 10th November 2022 – Planning for the 6 
Month Review of Governance Arrangements. Report of the Interim Director of 
Legal and Governance. 
Report to Governance Committee – 9th February 2023 – Governance Review – 
Engagement Findings and Next Steps. Report of the Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance, and Director of Policy, Performance and Communications. 
Equality Impact Assessment 1153 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s55510/Planning%20for%20the%20Review%20of%20New%20Governance%20Arrangements.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s55510/Planning%20for%20the%20Review%20of%20New%20Governance%20Arrangements.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s55510/Planning%20for%20the%20Review%20of%20New%20Governance%20Arrangements.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s57399/EngagementFindingsNextSteps090223.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s57399/EngagementFindingsNextSteps090223.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s57399/EngagementFindingsNextSteps090223.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s50861/Appendix%204%20-%20EIA.pdf


Page 6 of 10 

 
Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

Finance:  Matthew Ardern  

Legal:  Andrea Simpson 

Equalities & Consultation:  Ed Sexton  

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Climate:  N/A 
 

 Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 SLB member who approved 
submission: 

James Henderson & David Hollis 

3 Committee Chair consulted:  Cllr Julie Grocutt 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Committee by the SLB member indicated at 2.  In addition, any additional 
forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1.  

 Lead Officer Name: 
Emily Standbrook-Shaw 

Job Title:  
Policy & Improvement Officer 
 

 Date:  29th March 2023 

 
 

Page 26



Page 7 of 10 

 
  
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
1.4 

In May 2022, Sheffield City Council moved to a Committee System of 
Governance. As part of this transition, Full Council agreed that “the 
Governance Committee shall conduct a review of the effectiveness of the 
new system, commencing six months after implementation (November 
2022) with a view to provide Full Council with insight into what has 
worked well, alongside any recommendations.”  
 
Between November 2022, and March 2023, members of the Governance 
Committee carried out the review, drawing on the collective insight of 
Members, Citizens and Officers to understand how the new system was 
working, and what improvements can be made.  
 
During the same time period, a parallel piece of work was undertaken by 
a cross-party working group, led by the Whips, to improve the operation 
of Full Council. The recommendations from this working group have been 
incorporated into the Governance Committee’s final report. 
 
The final report of the Governance Committee’s Review of Governance 
Arrangements is attached at Appendix 1 for the Committee’s formal 
approval. The report describes how the review was carried out, and sets 
out the findings and recommendations for formal approval by the 
Committee. 
 
 

  
  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
  
2.1 The transition to a Committee System represented a huge change to the 

way the Council operates, and it was recognised from the start that we 
would not get everything right first time. Embedding and refining the 
model, and how we work within it, will take time. The recommendations 
from this review are a starting point for building on the progress made to 
date, and for realising our ambitions for the Committee System to be 
democratic, open and trustworthy, include all Councillors, listen to 
everyone, and be forward looking and keep improving. 

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 Hearing the views of Citizens, Members and Officers was a key part of 

the review process. Section 2.2 of the Committee’s final report details the 
Engagement Activity undertaken. 

  
  

 
 

Page 27



Page 8 of 10 

4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality Implications 
  
4.1.1 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion was a specific theme in the scope of the 

review (see section 6 of Appendix 1 of the final report for full engagement 
findings).  Several areas for improvement were identified through the 
engagement: 

•  
Consider how we can improve the quality of reports to Policy 
Committees, including accessibility, and timely publication. 

• Ensure the Impact Assessment process is robust, transparent, 
and applied consistently. 

• Ensure Members and Officers are signposted to wellbeing support 
services that are available through the Council. 

• Consider how we can improve the accessibility and readability of 
reports to policy committees, and ensure they are published in a 
timely and accessible way. 

• Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to a) know what is 
happening in Policy Committees and b) get involved. 

Actions to address these issues are underway through the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan (see appendix 2 of the Final Report). 
 

Retaining the job-share Co-Chair function, with an improved 
understanding of the role, will make leadership roles more accessible to 
a wider range of members. 

Work planned for the Governance Committee for 2023/24, looking at 
public questions and citizen engagement and involvement will improve 
our approach to inclusive participation. 

A summary review of the Transition to Committees EIA is attached at 
appendix 2. This will be kept under review as the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan progresses. 

  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 The recommendations in this report will be undertaken within existing 

resources. Activity to implement the recommendations will be prioritised 
factoring in organisational capacity. 

  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 
 
 

The Council is required under section 9P to prepare and keep up to date 
a constitution containing its Standing Orders (Procedure Rules), its Code 
of Conduct under s 28 of the Localism Act 2011, such information as the 

Page 28



Page 9 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 

Secretary of State may direct and such other information as the authority 
considers appropriate. The Secretary of State has not directed that any 
other information should be included, but it is good practice for the 
constitution to describe the arrangements made by the Council under 
LGA 1972 s101 for the discharge of its functions, the appointment of its 
committees under s102 of that Act and the way that it meets other 
statutory requirements concerning governance arrangements. The 
constitution must be available to the public and, under the Local 
Government Transparency Code 2015, be published on the Council’s 
website. 
 
Under the Children Act 2004 the Council must appoint a “director of 
children’s services” with responsibility for various statutory functions 
relating to children’s education, social care (including care leavers), 
wellbeing, and early childhood services, and must designate a “lead 
member for children’s services” in connection with the discharge of those 
functions. The appointment of the statutory Director of Children’s 
Services is recorded in the list of Statutory and Proper Officers at Part 7A 
of the Constitution and the Chair of the Policy Committee with 
responsibility for Children’s Services is designated the Lead Member for 
Children’s Services in Part 2 at Article 7. The proposed amendments to 
the remit of the Education Children and Families Policy Committee will 
make it clear that the committee has oversight of these statutory 
functions and thus strengthen political accountability for them.  
 
 

  
4.4 Climate Implications 
  
4.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The review recognised the need to strengthen our approach to Climate 
Impact Assessments in reports coming to Policy Committees. There is an 
action in the Governance Review Implementation Plan to “Ensure the 
Impact Assessment process is robust, transparent, and applied 
consistently”. 

  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  

Page 29



Page 10 of 10 

  
  
 

Page 30



 

  

APPENDIX 1:
6 MONTH REVIEW OF NEW 

GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS

Report & Recommendations of the Governance 
Committee

29th March 2023
     

Page 31



 

1 
 

1 Background and Introduction 

1.1 At its Annual General Meeting in May 2022, Sheffield City Council agreed a 
new constitution that would move the Council from a ‘Leader and Cabinet’ 
model of governance, to a ‘Committee System’ of governance. The 
Governance Committee led development of the new committee system, and 
during 2021/22, took an iterative approach to the design process, shaping the 
design as it emerged, with input from residents, stakeholders, partners and 
officers.  

1.2 We were clear from the outset however, that the model as agreed in May 
2022, would not be perfect in all respects, and that the process of embedding 
and refining the model would take time.  

In recognition of this, Full Council agreed that “the Governance Committee 
shall conduct a review of the effectiveness of the new system, commencing 
six months after implementation (November 2022) with a view to provide Full 
Council with insight into what has worked well, alongside any 
recommendations.”  

This ‘early look’ at the new system provides us with an opportunity to address 
any issues before they become entrenched, and to identify good practice to 
share more widely. The review was not aiming for wholesale redesign of the 
system, but the start of our commitment to continuous improvement, drawing 
on collective insight and experience to make the governance model better for 
citizens, members and officers.  

1.3 Just as the Council is on a 4 year improvement journey as set out in our 
Delivery Plan – so is our governance system. In this first year of operation, we 
have established a governance structure that has enabled lawful decision 
making and fostered greater collaboration across political parties. We know 
however, that we can improve, and that good governance does not come just 
from systems and structures, but from ways of working, culture and 
behaviour. We’re particularly keen to improve our approach to citizen and 
stakeholder engagement through Policy Committees. The recommendations 
from this review are a starting point to build on progress, and develop our 
ambitions for Sheffield’s committee system as part of a ‘Flourishing Sheffield 
City Council’. 

 

Page 32

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/corporate-delivery-plan


 

2 
 

 

2 The Review Process 

2.1 Scoping 

During October 2022, the Governance Committee carried out a scoping 
exercise, inviting input from councillors, citizens and officers. At its meeting on 
November 10th 2022 it agreed that the review would be structured around 6 
themes and 15 questions: 

 
Theme Questions 
Overall 
Structure 
 

Do the Policy Committees have clear remits, are they the right 
remits and are the links to other Committee remits working? 
Are the roles within the Committee System clear and working 
as intended? 
 

Decision 
Making and 
Delegation 
 

Are decisions being made effectively and efficiently? 
 

Capacity and 
Resource 
 

Are Policy Committees adequately supported? 
Is the preparation for Policy Committees reasonable and 
proportionate? 
Do Members and Officers have the tools and time to support, 
deliver and develop in the committee system? 
 

Working 
Practices 
 

Are pre-meets and briefings working effectively for all members 
of a committee? 
What do members, officers, organisations and the public think 
has changed between the old system and new? 
Are Policy Committees undertaking the type of activities 
pertaining to policy and decision making that they intended to 
do? 
Are Local Area Committees and Policy Committees working 
well together? Is there anything that could be improved? 
 

Citizen & 
Community 
Engagement 
and Formal 
Participation 
 

What is working well in terms of engagement for the public and 
are there any gaps? 
What is the volume and nature of public questions? 
How effective are we at responding to questions and petitions? 

 

Equality, 
Diversity & 
Inclusion, 
Communication 
& Information 
Availability. 
 

How well are we mitigating the risks identified in the Equalities 
Impact Assessment? 
How accessible are the Policy Committees and their outputs? 

 

 

Page 33



 

3 
 

 
2.2 Engagement Activity 
 
Governance Committee identified 3 groups of key stakeholders to seek feedback 
from during the review – Members, officers, and citizens. This took place between 
November 2022 and February 2023. 
 
2.2.1 Member Engagement 
 

• We engaged with over 50 Members individually. This took place 
predominantly through ‘drop-in’ sessions held after the December round of 
Policy Committees, with some Members emailing submissions in directly, and 
some opting to fill in the online survey, which ran between 25th November 
2022 and 2nd January 2023. The relatively low response rate to the survey 
means it was difficult to draw firm conclusions from the quantitative 
responses, but we have used the information as insight where appropriate.  

 
• The three main Political Groups submitted group responses to the review.   

 
• We attended the LAC Chairs meeting to get views on the relationship 

between LACs and Policy Committees.  
 
2.2.2 Officer Engagement  
  

• An online survey ran between the 25th November 2022 and the 2nd January 
2023. We received 41 responses.  

 
• The Review Team attended a range of officer forums including, Portfolio 

Leadership Teams, Service Leadership Teams, Heads of Service Network, 
Performance Leads Group, Committee Launch Group, Transition to 
Committees Equalities Sub-group, Sustainability Team and LAC staff.  

 
2.2.3 Citizen, Stakeholder and Partner Engagement  
  

• An online survey ran between 25th November 2022 and the 2nd January 2023. 
This was sent to people who had subscribed to the ‘Transition to Committees’ 
Gov Delivery mailing list; people who had attended meetings to ask public 
questions; Local Area Committee distribution lists; Sheffield City Partnership 
Board members; Sheffield Equality Partnerships mailing list. We received 50 
responses.  

 
• The survey email asked people to contact us if they would like to be involved 

in workshops or engagement activity related to the review. There was limited 
uptake to this, but it did lead to conversations with interested stakeholders 
including Disability Sheffield and HealthWatch Sheffield.  

 
• We received a small number of submissions from Citizens via email. 

 
 

 

Page 34



 

4 
 

 

3 Findings and Recommendations. 

3.1 At its meeting on the 9th February 2023, Governance Committee considered 
the findings of the Engagement, and from this identified issues that needed to 
be addressed. 

The full engagement findings are detailed in Appendix 1, and the issues are 
extracted below. 

Theme – Overall Structure 
 

• Consider whether the current process for cross-cutting issues could be 
improved, and how we can improve advice and guidance to officers on how 
to navigate decisions through the system. 

• Consider whether current delegations are appropriate, particularly in 
relation to transport and highways issues. 

• Consider whether current Committee remits are appropriately balanced 
• Consider whether changes are needed in relation to where decisions on 

Licensing Policy are taken. 
• Develop clearer guidance on the roles and responsibilities for Chairs, Co-

Chairs, Deputy Chairs and Group Spokespeople and how officers are 
expected to brief and interact with these roles. 

• Develop clearer definition and expectation of the Co-Chair role 
• Follow up remuneration issues around Group Spokespeople and Health 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee Chair. 
• Consider Deputy Leader membership and substitutions for S&R Committee. 

 
Theme - Decision Making and Delegation 
 

• Consider how we can develop our approach to work programming so that it 
becomes an effective tool for Members and officers in getting the right 
decisions made at the right time and in line with the Council’s strategic 
ambitions. 

• Consider how we provide officers with clear and consistent advice about 
how to navigate decisions through the Committee System. 

• Consider options around review and ‘call-in’ of decisions. 
 
Theme - Capacity and Resource 

• Develop clear and consistent advice for officers about how to navigate 
decisions through the Committee System 

• Develop mechanisms for Portfolio Officers to share best practise in 
resourcing the Committee System 

• Consider how we can help officers to better understand the process for 
getting a Committee report prepared, signed off and published in a timely 
way. 

• Develop training for officers on effective, accessible report writing 
• Consider the meeting cycle and schedule 

Page 35



 

5 
 

• Consider how we can provide Members and officers with ‘quick wins’ in 
terms of tools and support. 

Theme - Working Practices 
 

• Establish a consistent set of expectations around briefings, including who 
should be involved, how often they should happen, the role of group 
briefings and how they interact with pre-agenda and pre-meetings. 

• Consider mechanisms for continuous improvement of our governance 
arrangements. 

• Consider how we can create capacity in the system for Policy Committees 
to undertake more policy development and pre-decision scrutiny. 

• Develop a partnership approach to work programming with Members and 
officers, that results in balanced programme of decision making, policy 
development and scrutiny and evaluation. 

• Consider whether we need to develop a clearer framework on the balance 
of decisions between Policy Committees and LACs. 

• Develop clearer guidance and communications on the roles of LACs and 
Policy Committees, describing the process for referring issues between 
them. 

 
Theme - Citizen and Community Engagement and Formal Participation 
 

• Consider how we can create capacity in the system for Committees to 
undertake policy development work, making use of the ‘Engagement 
Toolkit’.  

• Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to know what is happening 
in Policy Committees and how they can get involved. 

• Consider how we will address the recommendations from the ‘Involve’ 
report. 

• Ensure the process for asking public questions is clear, that citizens are 
directed to the most appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to 
access. 

• Review the process for responding to public questions, to ensure it is fit for 
purpose in a Committee System 

 
Theme - Equality, Diversity & Inclusion, & Information Availability 
 

• Consider how we can improve the quality of reports to Policy Committees, 
including accessibility, and timely publication. 

• Ensure the Impact Assessment process is robust, transparent, and applied 
consistently. 

• Ensure Members and Officers are signposted to wellbeing support services 
that are available through the Council. 

• Consider how we can improve the accessibility and readability of reports to 
policy committees, and ensure they are published in a timely and accessible 
way. 

• Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to a) know what is 
happening in Policy Committees and b) get involved. 

Page 36



 

6 
 

 

3.1.1 A significant number of these issues require us to improve the way we are 
currently operating. Not things that require us to change our structures, 
systems, or constitution, but improvements we can make to the way we 
explain, communicate and support the system – essentially changing our 
culture and working practices to better support a Committee System. We 
recognise that the transition to a Committee System represents a huge 
change to how we all work together, and we need to make sure we have 
appropriate advice, guidance and support in place to embed the changes. 

 

3.1.2 Governance Committee agreed that it was appropriate for action to begin 
immediately to address these issues. They have been pulled together into the 
‘Governance Review Implementation Plan’ – attached at Appendix 2, and 
work is already underway to progress it. The Governance Review 
Implementation Plan will be a live document, and further actions will be added 
as required by Governance Committee. 

Recommendation 1 - Note that action to improve how we explain and 
support the Committee System is underway through the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan, and progress will be monitored by Governance 
Committee. 

 

3.1.3 The remaining issues related to changes to systems and working practices, 
and were taken forward to action planning workshops with Governance 
Committee Members. The findings and recommendations of Governance 
Committee are set out below – structured by scope theme. Appendix 3 
contains a summary of the recommendations and the action required to 
implement them. 

 

3.2 Overall Structure 
3.2.1 Cross-Cutting Issues 

The engagement highlighted concerns around the process for issues that 
come under the remit of more than one Policy Committee. The process, as 
set out in the constitution, allows for the Strategy & Resources Committee to 
determine the most appropriate Policy Committee to take a cross-cutting 
decision, or to take the decision itself. Governance Committee felt that this 
process is not working as intended, with Strategy & Resources Policy 
Committee tending to take decisions rather than directing them to the most 
appropriate forum. 

Recommendation 2 - The role of the Strategy & Resources Committee and 
senior officers in early identification of cross-cutting issues and directing them 

Page 37



 

7 
 

to the most appropriate Policy Committee needs to be re-emphasised – 
including the role of Strategy & Resources Committee in maintaining an 
oversight of Policy Committee work programmes. This should be actioned 
through the Governance Review Implementation Plan. 

3.2.2 Transport & Highways Issues 

The engagement showed that some members felt that the Transport, 
Regeneration and Climate Committee has been spending a disproportionate 
amount of its time on minor, local transport and highways issues, which are 
more appropriate for Local Area Committees.  

Governance Committee recognises the need for a broader conversation about 
the future role of Local Area Committees (LACs), and achieving our ambitions 
to “engage, enable, and empower communities across the city with 
increasing control over decision making”. We are aware that discussions on 
this have started with the Leader of the Council and LAC Chairs.  

Recommendation 3 - As part of ongoing work to develop the role of LACs, 
consideration should be given to devolving decisions and budgets on minor 
local transport and highways issues to Local Area Committees. The Policy 
Committee should provide overall strategy within which local areas make 
decisions to meet local need; and remain the decision maker for strategic 
transport issues and major schemes. 

 

3.2.3 Committee Remits 

The engagement highlighted imbalances in Committee remits – with some 
Committees, particularly Transport, Regeneration and Climate Change having 
particularly heavy workloads.  

Governance Committee is not minded to recommend changes to the current 
remits at this point, seeing the advantage to letting the Committee System 
‘bed-in’ further. Governance Committee will take a holistic approach to 
reviewing Committee remits over 2023/24, taking into account the impact of 
this review’s recommendations, any changes that may develop through the 
development of Local Area Committees and changes to the Council’s 
management structure. 

There is one exception to this, relating to our statutory duties covering 
children’s education and social care, which Governance Committee would like 
to see addressed for the 2023/24 Municipal Year.  

The Director of Children’s Services holds statutory responsibility for local 
authority children’s education and social services. Political accountability is 
held by the designated Lead Member for Children’s Services.  

To ensure that there is appropriate oversight and political accountability, 
functions relating to our statutory duties around children’s education and 
social care should sit within the remit of the policy committee chaired by the 

Page 38



 

8 
 

designated Lead Member for Children’s Services – the Education, Children 
and Families Policy Committee.  

Recommendation 4 – The remit of the Education, Children and Families 
Policy Committee should be expanded to clarify that it includes all the 
functions that are the statutory responsibility of the Director of Children’s 
Services.  

 

3.2.4 Regulatory Policy Decisions (Licensing) 

The implementation of the Committee System saw the move of regulatory 
licensing policy decision making away from the Licensing Committee, and into 
the Waste and Street Scene Policy Committee. Some Members and Citizens 
expressed concern that this has led to a loss of valuable experience and 
insight from Licensing Committee members who are well versed in the 
implementation of licensing policy. 

Governance Committee felt that it is appropriate that Policy Committees are 
responsible for deciding policy, including regulatory policy, but recognised that 
the expertise of regulatory committees should be utilised as part of the policy 
development process. 

Recommendation 5 - Where Policy Committees are developing regulatory 
policies, they shall form a working group with members of the relevant 
regulatory committee to inform the process. 

 

3.2.5 Co-Chairing 

Job share co-chairs were introduced in May 2022, with the aim of making 
Committee leadership more accessible to Councillors with other 
responsibilities, and increasing the capacity of Chairs. The engagement 
highlighted concerns with how this has been operating in practice. 

The engagement highlighted concerns around how the co-chair role is 
understood and operating.  

A key issue raised was around a lack of clarity on how responsibilities within a 
remit were shared, and the impact of co-chairs on the deputy chair role. The 
Job-Share Chair protocol sets out the responsibilities and expectations 
around co-chairing – it would appear that the protocol is not widely 
understood or adhered to. 

Recommendation 6 - The Job Share Chair Protocol should be adhered to by 
co-chairs, and promoted amongst officers and members to help develop a 
greater understanding of the role. 

Governance Committee recognises that some Committee remits may lend 
themselves more easily to co-chairing arrangements than others. Sub-

Page 39



 

9 
 

Committees already represent a ‘shared’ remit and therefore co-chairing 
arrangements should not be an option. 

Recommendation 7 - Co-chairing arrangements should not be permitted for 
sub-committees. 

Briefing arrangements for the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
(S&R) currently include both co-chairs, which means it does not mirror the 
membership of S&R, and is not politically proportionate. 

Recommendation 8 - Where there are co-chairs in place, only the member 
nominated to attend Strategy and Resources Committee should attend the 
Strategy and Resources briefing meetings. 

 

3.2.6 Health Scrutiny and Group Spokesperson Special Responsibility 
Allowances 

An issue raised by many members through the engagement was around the 
lack of a Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) for Group Spokespersons. 
Many Members felt that the demands and expectations on Group 
Spokespersons have been equivalent to that of a deputy chair (which does 
receive an SRA) – they are required to attend the same number of briefings 
and pre-meetings.  

The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) considered this issue during the 
course of the review – and was minded not to award an SRA to Group 
Spokespersons. This will be revisited following the review. 

Members also raised the issue of remuneration for the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee Chair. Governance Committee welcomes the decision of the IRP 
to award an SRA to this role. 

 

3.2.7 Membership of Strategy and Resources Committee 

The Constitution sets out that, for Strategy & Resources Policy Committee, 
the Leader of the Council is the Chair of the Committee. Membership includes 
the Chairs of each of the Council’s other Policy Committees, the Chair of the 
Finance Sub-Committee, and such other Members as are necessary for 
political proportionality, ,and to ensure an odd number of Members. Members 
of the Committee may not nominate substitute members. 

Governance Committee felt that the same substitution rules should apply to 
Strategy & Resources Policy Committee as for the others – given its 
importance to the smooth running of the Council. 

Recommendation 9 - Substitutes should be permitted at S&R. Where the 
committee member is Chair of a Policy Committee the substitute must have 

Page 40



 

10 
 

sufficient knowledge of their committee's work, and political proportionality 
must be maintained. 

 

The Governance Committee also considered whether the Deputy Leader 
should be entitled to a seat on the Strategy and Resources Committee, 
without the requirement of also chairing a policy committee – to make the role 
of Deputy Leader more manageable. 

Governance Committee agreed that the Deputy Leader should sit on Strategy 
& Resources Committee – but that this should not be an additional seat. 
Should the Deputy Leader not be a Policy Committee Chair, the current 
approach allows for their appointment through existing mechanisms around 
appointments to ensure political proportionality.   

 

3.3 Decision Making and Delegation 

3.3.1 Review and Call-In of Decisions 

Governance Committee considered whether there was a need to develop 
mechanisms for call-in and review of Policy Committee decisions. The 
Committee felt that no changes were required, and that recommendations 
from the review (see section 3.4.2) to increase Policy Committee’s capacity to 
undertake more policy development activity should lead to an increase in pre-
decision scrutiny and review. 

 

3.4 Working Practices 

 

3.4.1 Briefings 

The engagement highlighted the importance and value of briefings to 
members in growing their knowledge, preparing for decision making, and 
developing policy – and that a range of practises are in operation across 
different Policy Committees.  

Governance Committee is keen to maintain flexibility for Policy Committees to 
operate in a way that works for them and their work programmes, but also to 
establish a degree of consistency in what officers and members should expect 
around briefing. 

Recommendation 10 - Briefing practises must enable all members of a 
policy committee to be adequately briefed for formal decision making. This 
should include arrangements for substitute members. 

All Members should also have the opportunity to develop their knowledge and 
engage in policy and work programme development.  

Page 41



 

11 
 

Committee Members and officers should work together to identify where it is 
appropriate for these briefings to be all member/whole committee/Chair, 
deputy, group spokesperson/political group. 

Guidance on this should be produced as part of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 

 

3.4.2 Increasing Capacity for Policy Development Activity 

A key finding of the engagement was that there haven’t been enough 
opportunities for Members to undertake policy development work, with the 
knock- on effect that opportunities for meaningful engagement for Committees 
with citizens and stakeholders were limited. Addressing this requires us to 
take action across a range of areas – carving out time for Members to 
undertake work, planning and prioritising appropriately, and developing policy 
skills for members and officers. 

Recommendation 11 - Policy Committees should continue to meet formally 6 
times a year, with informal space diarised on the month where no formal 
meetings take place. This should enable Committees to carry out policy 
development activities as per their work programmes. This should not add to 
Member and Officer workloads, but reduce the need for additional, ad hoc 
briefing sessions and workshops. 

Recommendation 12 - Current guidance states that Policy Committees 
should only operate one task and finish group at a time. This should be 
revised to provide a more ‘enabling’ approach to policy development. Policy 
Committees should be able to carry out work as required, subject to sufficient 
officer and Member capacity. 

Recommendation 13 - An action should be added to the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan, to develop and promote a ‘Policy Development Toolkit’ 
for officers and Members that sets out best practice for developing policy in a 
Committee System, to be used alongside the existing ‘Engagement Toolkit. 

Recommendation 14 - Arrangements should be put in place that enable 
early conversations post-AGM, between Chairs, their Committees and Senior 
Officers, to develop work programmes that address corporate, service plan 
and Member priorities, resulting in a balanced programme of decision making, 
policy development and scrutiny & evaluation. Guidance for members and 
officers should be produced as part of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 

 

3.4.3 Future Review and Improvement 

We recognised from the beginning of the transition to a Committee System, 
that we would not get everything right first time round, and that we would need 

Page 42



 

12 
 

to refine and develop the committee system over a number of years.  It is 
therefore important that the work of the Governance Committee continues. 

Recommendation 15 - Governance Committee should continue into 2023/24 
as a forum for ongoing review and maintenance of the constitution and 
governance arrangements, as well as Member development.  

Key priorities for the Governance Committee’s work programme in 2023/24 
should include: 

• Citizen and Stakeholder Engagement (see recommendation 16). 

• Monitoring progress of the Governance Review Implementation Plan 

• Developing a performance framework and metrics, enabling us to measure 
progress as the Committee System develops further. 

 

3.5 Citizen and Community Engagement and Formal 
Participation. 
A key finding of our Engagement was that there has not been enough 
meaningful engagement of Policy Committees with citizens and stakeholders 
during this initial period of operation. It is a priority for us to address this over 
the coming year. 

Policy Committees have had limited opportunities to undertake policy 
development work this year (see recommendations 11-14), which has limited 
opportunities for engaging with citizens and stakeholders and making use of 
the engagement toolkit. We also recognise that we need to improve the way 
the whole Council engages across the board. We commissioned an 
organisation called ‘Involve’ to talk to some of our stakeholders and help us 
think about the changes we need to make.  

We also need to improve our approach to formal participation through our 
public questions process. Some issues are being picked up through the 
Governance Review Implementation Plan, but more detailed work is required. 

Recommendation 16 - Governance Committee should set up task and finish 
groups to look at: 

Public Questions - ensuring the process for citizens to ask public questions 
is clear, that public questions are triaged in a way that directs them to the 
most appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to access. 
Considering processes for responding to public questions, ensuring a 
consistent approach that is fit for purpose in the Committee System.  

Citizen Engagement and Involvement – Consider how we can drive 
progress in realising our ambitions for community involvement and 
engagement, taking learning from recent reviews including Involve, the LGA 
Peer Challenge, the Race Equality Commission Report. 

Page 43



 

13 
 

These task and finish groups will actively seek feedback from, and test 
proposals with, citizens and stakeholders; and report into the Governance 
Committee. 

 

4 Full Council Working Group 
Separate from, but linked to the Governance Review, a piece of work has 
been undertaken by a cross party Working Group, led by the Group Whips 
and including the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor, looking at the operation 
of Full Council. 

The Working Group’s findings have been fed into the Governance 
Committee’s discussions, and their recommendations on how Full Council 
should operate are incorporated into this report, as set out below. 

 

Recommendations on Full Council Operation. 

4.1 Members Questions 

• Defined purpose of Members Questions at Full Council: Accountability, 
transparency and representation 

• A Chair should make it clear in what capacity they're responding to a 
question  

• Members' questions to a committee chair at Full Council should not be 
from a member of that committee. Policy committees should include a 
standing item for Members' questions (from members of the committee 
and for issues which are not already the subject of an item of business on 
the Committee agenda) 

• Ensure there is officer resource and time to produce quality answers to 
Members' Questions 

4.2 Motions and Amendments 

• Introduce a limit of 400 words for Notices of Motion. Amendments should 
not seek to add more than 250 words. 

• Motions should be relevant and have a conclusion/clear requested 
outcome. Recognise that some Motions may be issues for debate and 
others might be opportunity to refer an issue to a Policy Committee  

• No reduction in the number of Notices or Motion – to retain opportunity to 
ensure smaller groups and independent members are able to submit them  

• Be more overt about what we do with Full Council outcomes referred to 
Policy Committees for consideration on their Work Programmes (e.g. by 

Page 44



 

14 
 

including an additional item on Policy Committee agendas or reworking the 
Work Programme report)  

 

4.3 Duration and agenda management 

• Retain current duration of 3.5 hrs plus time after guillotine to formally 
transact business 

• Give priority to public engagement items 

• Proactive work programming for Council meetings: regular discussion of 
forthcoming items with Whips to agree priorities for Full Council consider 
and management of business - e.g. through temporary suspension of 
certain Standing Orders to make time for debate. 

4.4 Frequency of meetings, days & times  

• Ensure early awareness of the meeting calendar, so Members can 
arrange time off etc  

• A regular day and time for Full Council meetings 

• Governance Committee did not reach agreement on the frequency of Full 
Council meetings. Full Council should therefore be asked to determine 
whether Full Council should change meeting frequency from the current 
approach of 6 ordinary meetings, plus Annual General Meeting and 
Budget Council or reduce the number to 4 ordinary meetings, plus Annual 
General Meeting and Budget Council. 

 

4.5 New standard items for Council  

• Option of submitting Policy Committee Minutes to Council for review - this 
suggestion was not supported by the Whips and the Working Group  

• Utilize existing provisions for 'Scrutiny' type items:  
• CPR 5.7 (k) - "receive any presentations on matters of significant 

interest to the City" (to include, for example, from Strategic City 
Partners, SYMCA Mayor, Director of Public Health) 

• See also proactive work programme for full Council 

 

4.6 Voting  

• Principle of conducting electronic voting with appropriate pace 
• Retain ability to vote in parts (CPR 18.3 refers to “in exceptional 

circumstances”) see also word limit on Motions and Amendments 
• Continue to use no dissent ('agreed') and show of hands where 

appropriate  

Page 45



 

15 
 

• Lord Mayor announces results and we publish voting outcomes for 
transparency 

    

5 Conclusions and Next Steps 

The transition to a Committee System has been a huge undertaking. Governance 
Committee would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the hard work that has 
gone into setting up the system and making it work in this initial year, and to thank all 
those involved. 

The governance system we have put in place has enabled us to work cross-party to 
take important decisions about the future of our city. We recognise that the Council 
being in ‘No Overall Control’ has played a role in this too, and that any changes to 
this in the future will test our system in different ways, but our experiences this year 
have provided us with a solid foundation on which to build. 

Some of the recommendations we have made here will lead to constitutional change 
– making our system easier to work within. The bulk of our recommendations 
however, are about supporting councillors and officers to develop the working 
practices, skills and tools that we need to maximise the opportunities the committee 
system gives us; and to strengthen our engagement with citizens and stakeholders. 
Essentially we are aiming to develop stronger cultural ownership of the committee 
system, and make it work for all Sheffielders. 

Work is already underway to address many of the issues we have identified here, 
through the Governance Review Implementation Plan. Progress on this will be 
reported to the Governance Committee during 2023/24. 

At its Annual General Meeting in May, Full Council will be asked to approve our 
recommendations, and where necessary, make the required changes to the 
Council’s Constitution. 

We look forward to continuing our work next year, and driving further development 
and improvement of our governance arrangements. 

 

Governance Committee 

March 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

16 
 

  
 Appendix 1 – Engagement Findings extracted from report to Governance 

Committee, 9th February 2023 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 

Engagement Findings 
 
The Review Team synthesised the findings from the engagement activity under each of 
the review questions, and from that pulled out the key actions to undertake in the ‘Action 
Planning’ phase of the review. 
 
Overall Structure 

  
1.1 Do the Policy Committees have clear remits, are they the right remits and are the 

links to other Committee remits working? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members and officers were clear that the current Policy Committee remits are 
unbalanced – with some having overly large remits. This was most often mentioned in 
relation to the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Change (TRCC) Policy Committee, 
where people told us that too much agenda time is spent on local and operational 
transport issues, leaving inadequate time for the Committee to consider important 
strategic and policy issues – including Climate Change. Some Members and officers felt 
that more decisions could be delegated to LACs or a sub-committee to help remedy 
this. 
 
Some Members and citizens feel that the Licensing Committee, rather than the Waste 
and Streetscene Policy Committee, should be the place where Licensing Policy is 
decided. 
 
How cross-cutting issues are dealt with in the Committee System has come up a lot in 
our conversations. Officers have told us that it can be very difficult to navigate the 
system and know where to go for decisions and who to brief – especially when the issue 
is time sensitive. Several Members have questioned whether the role of the Strategy & 
Resources Policy Committee in cross-cutting issues is working effectively – and feel that 
S&R has tended to make the decisions itself, rather than determine the appropriate 
Policy Committee to make the decision. Some citizens told us that it can be hard to 
keep track of an issue when it is being discussed in more than one Committee. 
 
 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider whether the current process for cross-cutting issues could be improved, 
and how we can improve advice and guidance to officers on how to navigate 
decisions through the system. 

• Consider whether current delegations are appropriate, particularly in relation to 
transport and highways issues. 

• Consider whether current Committee remits are appropriately balanced 
• Consider whether changes are needed in relation to where decisions on 

Licensing Policy are taken. 
 

Page 47



 

17 
 

 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Are the roles within the Committee System clear and working as intended? 
 
Of the roles within the Committee system, the role of co-chair is the least understood. 
50% of members who responded to the survey said that the role was not clear to them, 
compared to 33% who said that the role was clear (17% did not answer this question). 
Some Members and officers told us that they weren’t clear how responsibilities were 
split between co-chairs, and that this could be confusing, and risks issues falling through 
the gaps. Whilst some people welcomed the opportunity co-chairing brings to lighten to 
load on one individual, others observed that co-chairs attend all briefings and seems to 
be a duplication of the roles, rather than sharing. 
 
A recurring theme from Members was that the roles of deputy chair and group 
spokesperson are essentially the same in terms of workload, and therefore that the 
group spokesperson role should be remunerated. This issue was recently considered by 
the Independent Remuneration Panel, whose recommendation was the role should not 
be remunerated but did suggest it ought to be looked at again after this review. Some 
Members also raised concern that the Chair of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee is 
currently unremunerated, and that this should be considered. 
 
Some officers have found that multiple committee leadership roles have led to confusion 
about how and who to brief and when, and would appreciate a clearer articulation of the 
roles, and what the expectations are between officers and members. What’s the right 
forum for an early steer on policy development? Is it appropriate to brief only the Chair?  
 
Some issues were raised in relation to the Strategy & Resources Committee. One 
political group submission suggested that the role of substitute members should be the 
same for Strategy & Resources Committee as for others, and should therefore be 
permitted – to retain proportionality. It was also suggested that Deputy Leader have an 
automatic place on the Strategy & Resources Committee – without having to also chair 
a Policy Committee. The role as is currently stands feels too big. 
 
The focus of our engagement here was on the roles in the Committee System, however 
one political group submission suggested that the review should look at redefining the 
role of the Leader in the Committee System. This was out of scope, however may be 
something the Governance Committee would like to pick up in future pieces of work. 
 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Develop clearer guidance on the roles and responsibilities for Chairs, Co-Chairs, 
Deputy Chairs and Group Spokespeople and how officers are expected to brief 
and interact with these roles. 

• Develop clearer definition and expectation of the Co-Chair role 
• Follow up remuneration issues around Group Spokespeople and Health Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee Chair. 
• Consider Deputy Leader membership and substitutions for S&R Committee. 

 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

18 
 

 
 
2 
 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Decision Making and Delegation 
 
 
Are decisions being made effectively and efficiently? 
 
Of those who responded to the survey, only 27% of officers and 22% of Members think 
that the work programme is effective in getting the right decision made at the right time. 
Officers told us they are sometimes given inconsistent advice about which decisions 
need to go to Committee, and which Committee they need to go to – and would 
welcome a ‘route map’ that sets out the process clearly. 
 
Members told us that they need access to information far enough in advance of 
meetings to facilitate discussions with their group in order to be able to make decisions. 
This includes appropriate briefing, and timely publication of reports. 
 
46% of officers said that too many decisions are being taken by Policy Committees that 
could be taken by officers, and some feel the financial threshold for Committee 
decisions is too low. Some Members and officers feel that decisions are currently being 
made in the wrong forum – for example local and operational transport issues could be 
made at LACs or a sub-committee – freeing up TRCC agendas for strategic decisions 
and policy development. 
 
One political group submission suggested that a ‘call-in’ mechanism for decisions 
should be adopted – so that a decision can be sent back for Committee consideration 
where it contradicts other Council policy. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider how we can develop our approach to work programming so that it 
becomes an effective tool for Members and officers in getting the right decisions 
made at the right time and in line with the Council’s strategic ambitions. 

• Consider how we provide officers with clear and consistent advice about how to 
navigate decisions through the Committee System. 

• Consider whether current delegations are appropriate and enabling Policy 
Committees to focus on the right issues 

• Consider options around ‘call-in’ of decisions. 
 
Capacity and Resource 
 
Are Policy Committees adequately supported? 
 
59% of officers and 61% of Members who responded to the survey said they are 
satisfied or very satisfied with the support they receive, with 17% of officers and 11% of 
Members saying they were unsatisfied or very unsatisfied and 22% of officers and 28% 
of Members saying that they were unsure.  
 
Officers involved in the administration of Committees, and the ‘sign off’ process (eg. 
assessing the legal, financial, equalities or climate implications of reports and decisions) 
for committee reports have found that their workloads have  

Page 49



 

19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

increased significantly since the Committee System was introduced. They have reported 
that an increase in the number of papers being submitted at the last minute creates 
‘pinch points’ where workload becomes unmanageable. This also results in late 
publication of committee papers – which Members and citizens have told us is 
problematic. 
 
Officers in portfolios also reported that servicing the Committee System is using more 
resource – with 56% of officers who responded to the survey saying that the Committee 
System has negatively impacted their ability to carry out other parts of their role. Officers 
told us that they would like clear and consistent advice and support on which decisions 
need to go to Committee, and clear routes for how to get there. This would help to get 
reports in a timely fashion. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Develop clear and consistent advice for officers about how to navigate decisions 
through the Committee System 

• Develop mechanisms for Portfolio Officers to share best practise in resourcing 
the Committee System 

 
 
Is the preparation for Policy Committees reasonable and proportionate? 
 
67% of members, and 49% of officers who responded to the survey said that 
preparation time for Policy Committee meetings is reasonable, compared to 10% and 
11% who said it was not reasonable. 
 
A frequent issue raised in our discussions with Members was that they are required to 
do a huge amount of pre-reading to prepare for Committee meetings.  Overly lengthy 
reports, and late publication of papers makes this difficult and is a key frustration for 
Members. Of the 42 meetings that took place before 7th December 2022, 12 agendas 
were published with at least 1 report ‘to follow’. One member reported having over 1,000 
pages of reports to read over a week. 
 
We know from conversations with officers involved in writing reports for committees, and 
those involved in signing them off, that last minute changes can lead to late publication 
of papers.  Officers need to understand the process for getting a report to a committee, 
seek engagement from legal/finance/equalities/climate sign off colleagues at an early 
stage, and produce a report in good time for the deadline. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider how we can help officers to better understand the process for getting a 
Committee report prepared, signed off and published in a timely way. 

• Develop training for officers on effective, accessible report writing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

20 
 

 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Do Members and Officers have the tools and time to support, deliver and develop 
in the committee system? 
 

 
 
 
When asked what would be helpful in terms of tools and support, Members suggested 
that more briefings, and PA support would be useful, and suggested that more a more 
frequent, regular (same time, same day) meeting schedule would help to manage 
workloads. 
 
Officers gave a range of suggestions including, more staff, clearer guidance on 
navigating the system, earlier engagement with ‘sign off’ services, opportunities to share 
experiences and best practice with officers across different areas, report templates that 
are appropriate for ‘non-decision’ reports, more officer support for the new Climate 
Impact Assessment, and training. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider the meeting cycle and schedule 
• Consider how we can provide Members and officers with ‘quick wins’ in terms of 

tools and support. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

21 
 

4 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Working Practices 
 
Are pre-meets and briefings working effectively for all Members of a committee? 
 
Members have told us that they value briefings, and would like more of them, but have 
observed that there is a variety of practice across Committees in terms of how frequent 
they are and who attends them. 
 
It is not clear that the intended process, of Chairs, Deputy Chairs and Group 
Spokespeople attending briefings and pre-meetings and taking that information back to 
their Groups is working consistently. Officers are required to brief party groups more 
than they had anticipated in the new system, and are unsure what expectations of this 
are. 
 
Officers have reported that preparation for briefings is labour intensive, and difficult to 
organise across many diaries, but that briefings are helping to develop relationships with 
Committees and grow knowledge.   
 
Officers and Members have reported that some briefings have been poorly attended by 
Members, but recognise the diary pressures that many members have. Some Members 
told us they would prefer to have a regular schedule of briefings, happening on the 
same day and time each week, to help with caring/work responsibilities etc. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 
 

• Establish a consistent set of expectations around briefings, including who should 
be involved, how often they should happen, the role of group briefings and how 
they interact with pre-agenda and pre-meetings. 

 
What do Members, officers, organisations and the public think has changed 
between the old system and new? 
 
A key message to come through conversations with Members was that cross-party 
working is working well in the new system, recognising that this may been aided by the 
Council being in ‘no overall control.’ There was a recognition that the system is still in its 
early days and that we are still learning and bedding in. 
 
Officers have found it positive to have input from, and engage with a wider group of 
members through committees, although some have found the new system more 
complex to navigate – particularly the informal briefings which previously would have 
involved one cabinet member. 
 
The results from the survey around whether the new system has delivered on our key 
design principles to be democratic, open and trustworthy, include all Councillors, listen 
to everyone and be forward looking and keep improving are mixed – and difficult to draw 
meaningful conclusions from. Officers are more likely to agree or strongly agree that the 
new system is delivering on the key design principles than citizens or members. 
 

Page 52



 

22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In terms of being forward looking and keep improving, Governance Committee is keen 
that the review identifies mechanisms for continuous improvement beyond the review 
itself. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

6%
11%

33%

0%
6%

56%
50%

11%
17%

22%

17%

33%
28%

56%

22%17%

0%
11%

17%

33%

0%
6%

0%
11%

17%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Democratic Open & Trustworthy Include all Councillors Listen to Everyone Be forward looking and 
keep improving

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Members - Agreement that the committee system is delivering on its 
design principles

18% 14% 16% 12% 12%

22% 22%
32%

12% 12%

30%
36%

28% 24%
34%

18%
12% 12%

32%
24%

6% 10% 6%
14% 12%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Democratic Open & Trustworthy Include all Councillors Listen to Everyone Be forward looking and 
keep improving

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Citizens - Agreement that the committee system is delivering on its design 
principles

17% 22%
15%

7% 10%

61%

41%

59%

34%

22%

10%

24%
15%

32%
37%

10% 10% 5%

22% 24%

2% 2% 5% 5% 7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Democratic Open & Trustworthy Include all Councillors Listen to Everyone Be forward looking and 
keep improving

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Employees - Agreement that the committee system is delivering on its 
design principles

Page 53



 

23 
 

 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase 
Consider mechanisms for continuous improvement of our governance arrangements. 
 
 
Are Policy Committees undertaking the type of activities pertaining to policy and 
decision making that they intended to do? 
 
Of Members who responded to the survey, 61% think that committees are not doing 
enough policy development work, and 56% think they are not doing enough pre-
decision scrutiny and evaluation.  
 
Members and officers told us that there have not been enough opportunities for early 
policy development work, and use of workshops, working groups and task and finish 
groups – limiting the ability for committee’s to meaningfully engage with citizens and 
stakeholders. One political group submission suggested that Policy Committee 
meetings should meet monthly to create space for policy development work, alternating 
between formal business and policy development. 
 
Members and officers told us that work programmes feel officer led, and that we need to 
enable Members to shape the work programme and find space to carry out work on 
policy priorities 
. 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider how we can create capacity in the system for Policy Committees to 
undertake more policy development and pre-decision scrutiny. 

• Develop a partnership approach to work programming with Members and 
officers, that results in balanced programme of decision making, policy 
development and scrutiny and evaluation. 

 
 
Are Local Area Committees and Policy Committees working well together? Is 
there anything that could be improved? 
 
The results from the survey suggest that there is a lack of clarity around the relationship 
between LACs and Policy Committees, with 50% of members, 56% of officers and 44% 
of citizens saying that remits of LACs and Policy Committees is not clear; and 67% of 
Members, 80% of officers and 66% of citizens saying that it is not clear how and when 
matters can be referred between LACs and Policy Committees.  
 
Members and officers told us that this lack of clarity means that issues can be ‘bounced’ 
between committees, which is frustrating for all.  
 
Some citizens and Members feel that some decisions currently being taken by Policy 
Committees would be more appropriately taken by LACs, and would free up policy 
committee capacity.  
 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider whether we need to develop a clearer framework on the balance of 
decisions between Policy Committees and LACs. 

Page 54



 

24 
 

 
 
 
 
 
5 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 

• Develop clearer guidance and communications on the roles of LACs and Policy 
Committees, describing the process for referring issues between them. 

 
 
 
Citizen & Community Engagement and Formal Participation 
 
What is working well in terms of engagement for the public and are there any 
gaps? 
 
Public engagement is the area that people feel we’ve made least progress on as part of 
the transition to the Committee System. Of those who responded to the survey, only 
17% of Members, 24% of citizens and 41% of officers agree or strongly agree we are 
delivering the design principle of ‘Listening to Everyone’. 
 
We heard some examples of engagement working well – Business Advisor involvement 
in Economic Development and Skills Committee discussions, and the Co-opted 
HealthWatch member on the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee feeding in views from 
diverse communities – but feedback from Members indicates that the ‘Engagement 
Toolkit’, introduced as part of the transition, is not being used. 
 
Members and officers told us that there have not been enough opportunities for policy 
development work and ‘task and finish groups’ in the new system – which is where early 
engagement with citizens and stakeholders can add most value.  
Citizen survey responses suggest that many people don’t feel connected to, or aware 
of, Policy Committees and their work, and those that do find it difficult to know how to 
navigate the system and influence decisions.   
 
Officers and citizens questioned whether there is adequate support, resource and 
expertise for engagement within the Council. As part of the transition to the Committee 
System, the Council started working with an organisation called ‘Involve’ to improve how 
the whole Council engages across the board and this is more fundamental to SCC’s 
ambitions for community involvement and engagement and the quality and consistency 
of practice across SCC. As discussed previously with Governance Committee, this 
needs to be progressed by SCC but progress has been constrained by SCC capacity 
and not through any fault of Involve. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase:  

• Consider how we can create capacity in the system for Committees to undertake 
policy development work, making use of the ‘Engagement Toolkit’.  

• Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to know what is happening in 
Policy Committees and how they can get involved. 

• Consider how we will address the recommendations from the ‘Involve’ report. 
 
 
What is the volume and nature of public questions? 
 
Between May and December 2022, 67 public questions were asked and 13 petitions 
were presented. The distribution of public questions across Committees is uneven, with 

Page 55



 

25 
 

 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adult Health and Social Care, and Education, Children and Families Policy Committees 
receiving none.  
 
 
How effective are we at responding to questions and petitions? 
 
Of those who responded to the survey, 44% of citizens were either dissatisfied, or very 
dissatisfied with speed of their response to a public question, and 56% were either 
dissatisfied or very dissatisfied with the manner of the response received. 
 
There is a sense that public questions are not always directed to the most appropriate 
forum, there is duplication of questions at Policy Committees, Full Council and LACs, 
and sometimes questions are ‘bounced’ between committees – causing confusion and 
delays to responses. Public Questions to LACs are not triaged centrally, so there is the 
potential for duplication and inconsistent responses where questions are asked at 
multiple committees. 
 
Some Members felt that the process in place for responding to questions – with 
responses formulated by officers and the Chair, is not appropriate in the new system, 
where the question is addressed to the Committee. 
 
Some citizens felt that 30 minutes is inadequate for dealing with public questions when 
significant decisions are being made; some felt the process is too formal and rigid, there 
is no scope for asking supplementary questions,  and isn’t a meaningful tool for 
engagement and influencing decision making. Some citizens would like to be able to 
submit questions anonymously or attend the meeting virtually to ask a question.  Some 
citizens were concerned that where written responses are provided, they are not 
published with the minutes, so they are not on the public record. 
 
Issues for Action Planning Phase:  

• Ensure the process for asking public questions is clear, that citizens are directed 
to the most appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to access. 

• Review the process for responding to public questions, to ensure it is fit for 
purpose in a Committee System 

 
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion, Communication & Information Availability. 
 
How well are we mitigating the risks identified in the Equalities Impact 
Assessment? 
 
Wellbeing – Of the officers and Members that responded to the survey, 34% of officers 
and 22% of Members reported that their wellbeing had deteriorated in the Committee 
system. Feedback from officers and Members indicates that for some, the increased 
workload, time commitments and pressure around deadlines has increased stress and 
impacted wellbeing.  
 
Some Members have expressed concern that time commitment required – particularly 
for Members with lead roles, or multiple roles, will disproportionately affect those with 
caring and work responsibilities and deter some people from standing for election. 
 

Page 56



 

26 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Quality, accessibility and timely publication of reports is important in ensuring Members 
and citizens are able to appropriately engage with policy committees – and can have a 
greater impact on those with accessibility requirements. 
 
Equality Impact Assessments - there is a lack of consistency in EIAs being attached to 
Committee reports. This varies by committee from 71% of Waste and Streetscene 
Policy Committee papers having the cited EIAs attached, to 6% at Finance Sub-
Committee. 
 
Proposed Issues for Action Planning Phase: 
 

• Consider how we can improve the quality of reports to Policy Committees, 
including accessibility, and timely publication. 

• Ensure the Equality Impact Assessment process is robust, transparent, and 
applied consistently. 

• Ensure Members and Officers are signposted to wellbeing support services that 
are available through the Council. 

 
How accessible are the Policy Committees and their outputs? 
 
Of citizens who responded to the survey, 42% said that Policy Committees aren’t 
always held in locations and at times that accommodate their needs. Some people said 
that formal meetings could be an intimidating forum to attend, and several citizens 
suggested hybrid/virtual options for attending formal meetings to increase access. 
 
Webcasting of meetings has made observing Policy Committee meetings more 
accessible – meetings between June and the end of November 2022 had an average of 
74 webcast views, with the minimum being 11, and the maximum being 164. 
 
20% of citizens who responded to the survey said the format papers are published in is 
not accessible to them, and several citizens said that Policy Committee reports are often 
too long, and use inaccessible language. We analysed 8 Policy Committee reports for 
reading ease using the Flesch Readibility Scale (which measures readability based on 
average sentence length and average syllables per word – where 100 is the most 
accessible).The results ranged from 27 to 37.7. 
 
Several citizens mentioned that it was hard to find information about Policy Committees 
and their meetings on the Sheffield City Council website, although 42% of citizen 
respondents knew where to find published draft minutes and webcasts on the website.  
 
Issues for Action Planning Phase: 

• Consider how we can improve the accessibility and readability of reports to policy 
committees, and ensure they are published in a timely and accessible way. 

• Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to a) know what is happening in 
Policy Committees and b) get involved. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



 

27 
 

7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Full Council 
 
The operation of Full Council was not included in the scope of the review, however 
during our engagement we received submissions relevant to it.  
 
One political group submission suggested that Full Council should be held every other 
month, at a fixed date and time on the 1st Wednesday of the month (except the AGM) – 
May, July, September, November, December, Feb, March/Budget; and that minutes of 
Committee meetings should come to Full Council in place of Members Questions. 
 
One political group submission suggested that the overall number of council meetings 
should stay at 6 plus AGM plus Budget; the order of the agenda should be changed to 
move business items up;  longer time limits for important items; Members Questions to 
continue at Full Council, but also introduced at Policy Committee meetings; that whether 
electronic voting is required on so many votes; and that voting in parts is kept as an 
option. 
 
There is currently a parallel piece of work being carried out by the Whips on the 
operation of Full Council. The information we received as part of the 6 month review will 
be passed to the relevant officers to inform the work on Full Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

28 
 

Appendix 2 – Governance Review Implementation Plan 

Theme Action Refined Action 

Improving how we 
explain the system 

Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to 
know what is happening in Policy Committees and 
how they can get involved 

Improve the information published on the Council's website 
regarding Policy Committee meetings and their work programmes.  
 
Determine other routes for communicating Policy Committee 
activity to citizens 

Improving how we 
explain the system 

Ensure the process for asking public questions is 
clear, that citizens are directed to the most 
appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to 
access 

Publish clear guidance on Sheffield City Council's website about how 
citizens can bring public questions to a Policy Committee 
Produce guidance for Officers on directing citizens to the most 
appropriate forum for their question  
Improve the accessibility of Policy Committee meetings for citizens. 
Consider results of AccessAble Town Hall assessment. Consider 
options for virtual attendance. 

Improving how we 
explain the system 

Consider how we provide officers with clear and 
consistent advice about how to navigate decisions 
through the Committee System - particularly where 
they are 'cross-cutting' issues 

Produce, and publish on SCC's intranet, guidance for officers on how 
and when to take decisions to a Policy Committee, including what to 
do if the decision crosses several Committees' remits 

Improving how we 
explain the system 

Develop clearer guidance on the roles and 
responsibilities for Chairs, Co-Chairs, Deputy Chairs 
and Group Spokespeople and how officers are 
expected to brief and interact with these roles 

Produce, and publish on SCC's intranet, guidance for officers on the 
roles and responsibilities of each role within a Policy Committee, 
along with expectations for communications and briefings 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Advice, Guidance and 
Support 

Develop mechanisms for Portfolio Officers to share 
best practice in resourcing and working in the 
Committee System 

Work with officers across portfolios to design and implement 
systems for sharing best practice and peer guidance for working in 
the Committee system 

P
age 59



 

29 
 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Advice, Guidance and 
Support 

Consider how we can provide officers with 'quick 
wins' in terms of tools and support 

Identify areas of potential improvement within the Committee 
system that can be designed and implemented quickly to include: 
report templates for non-decision reports; intranet guidance as 
above; peer guidance as above. 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Advice, Guidance and 
Support 

Ensure Members and Officers are signposted to 
wellbeing support services that are available through 
the Council 

Include in Members newsletter, on Members intranet, in Member 
induction materials. 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Effective and Timely 
Reports 

Consider how we can help officers to better 
understand the process for getting a Committee 
report prepared, signed off and published in a timely 
way 

Produce, and publish on SCC's intranet, guidance for officers on how 
to take a report to a Policy Committee (including timescales for each 
milestone) 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Effective and Timely 
Reports 

Develop training for officers on effective, accessible 
report writing 

Commission training for Officers on writing reports for Policy 
Committees that are concise, effective and accessible 

Improving the support 
we provide to those 
working in the system: 
Effective and Timely 
Reports 

Ensure the impact assessment process is robust, 
transparent and applied consistently 

Produce and publish guidance for officers on completing and 
publishing Equalities, Climate and Environmental Impact 
Assessments with committee reports 

 
 

 

P
age 60



 

30 
 

Appendix 3 – Summary of Recommendations 
 

Number Recommendation How this will be implemented 
1 Note that action to improve how we explain and support the Committee 

System is underway through the Governance Review Implementation Plan, 
and progress will be monitored by Governance Committee. 
 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 
Include on Governance Committee 
Work Programme. 

2 The role of the Strategy & Resources Committee and senior officers in early 
identification of cross-cutting issues and directing them to the most 
appropriate Policy Committee needs to be re-emphasised – including the role 
of Strategy & Resources Committee in maintaining an oversight of Policy 
Committee work programmes. This should be actioned through the 
Governance Review Implementation Plan 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 

3 As part of ongoing work to develop the role of LACs, consideration should be 
given to devolving decisions and budgets on minor local transport and 
highways issues to Local Area Committees. The Policy Committee should 
provide overall strategy within which local areas make decisions to meet local 
need; and remain the decision maker for strategic transport issues and major 
schemes. 

Full Council to agree and consider as 
part of ongoing LAC work and agree 
any resulting changes to committee 
and LAC Terms of reference in Part 3 
of the Constitution.  

4 The remit of the Education, Children and Families Policy Committee should 
be expanded to clarify that it includes all the functions that are the statutory 
responsibility of the Director of Children’s Services. 

Full Council to agree change to the 
Terms of Reference of the relevant 
committee(s) in Part 3 of the 
Constitution 

5 Where Policy Committees are developing regulatory policies, they shall form 
a working group with members of the relevant regulatory committee to inform 
the process. 

Full Council to agree change to the 
Terms of Reference of the relevant 
committee(s) in Part 3 of the 
Constitution 

6 The Job Share Chair Protocol should be adhered to by co-chairs, and 
promoted amongst officers and members to help develop a greater 
understanding of the role. 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 

P
age 61



 

31 
 

7 Co-chairing arrangements should not be permitted for sub-committees. Full Council to agree change to Job-
Share Chair Protocol in Part 5 of the 
Constitution. 

8 Where there are co-chairs in place, only the member nominated to attend 
Strategy and Resources Committee should attend the Strategy and 
Resources briefing meetings. 

Full Council to agree change to Job-
Share Chair Protocol in Part 5 of the 
Constitution. 

9 Substitutes should be permitted at S&R. Where the committee member is 
Chair of a Policy Committee the substitute must have sufficient knowledge of 
their committee's work, and political proportionality must be maintained. 

Full Council to agree change to 
Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of 
the Constitution 

10 Briefing practises must enable all members of a policy committee to be 
adequately briefed for formal decision making. This should include 
arrangements for substitute members. 
All Members should also have the opportunity to develop their knowledge and 
engage in policy and work programme development.  
Committee Members and officers should work together to identify where it is 
appropriate for these briefings to be all member/whole committee/Chair, 
deputy, group spokesperson/political group. 
Guidance on this should be produced as part of the Governance Review 
Action Plan. 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 
Amendment to Member Officer 
Protocol in Part 5 of the Constitution  

11 Policy Committees should continue to meet formally 6 times a year, with 
informal space diarised on the month where no formal meetings take place. 
This should enable Committees to carry out policy development activities as 
per their work programmes. This should not add to Member and Officer 
workloads, but reduce the need for additional, ad hoc briefing sessions and 
workshops. 

Action through Democratic Services 
annual planning process. 

12 Current guidance states that Policy Committees should only operate one task 
and finish group at a time. This should be revised to provide a more ‘enabling’ 
approach to policy development. Policy Committees should be able to carry 
out work as required, subject to sufficient officer and Member capacity. 

Full Council to agree change to Policy 
Committee Terms of Reference in 
Part 3 and corresponding change to 
Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of 
the Constitution. 

13 An action should be added to the Governance Review Implementation Plan, 
to develop and promote a ‘Policy Development Toolkit’ for officers and 
Members that sets out best practice for developing policy in a Committee 
System, to be used alongside the existing ‘Engagement Toolkit. 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 

P
age 62



 

32 
 

14 Arrangements should be put in place that enable early conversations post-
AGM, between Chairs, their Committees and Senior Officers, to develop work 
programmes that address corporate, service plan and Member priorities, 
resulting in a balanced programme of decision making, policy development 
and scrutiny & evaluation. Guidance for members and officers should be 
produced as part of the Governance Review Implementation Plan. 

Action through Governance Review 
Implementation Plan. 
Amendment to Member Officer 
Protocol in Part 5 of the Constitution  

15 Governance Committee should continue into 2023/24 as a forum for ongoing 
review and maintenance of the constitution and governance arrangements, as 
well as Member development.  
Key priorities for the Governance Committee’s work programme in 2023/24 
should include: 

• Citizen and Stakeholder Engagement (see recommendation 15). 
• Monitoring progress of the Governance Review Implementation 

Plan 
• Developing a performance framework and metrics, enabling us to 

measure progress as the Committee System develops further 
 

Full Council to agree to continued 
existence of Governance Committee 
with some changes to its Terms of 
Reference in Part 3 of the 
Constitution. 
 

16 Governance Committee sets up task and finish groups to look at: 
Public Questions - ensuring the process for citizens to ask public questions 
is clear, that public questions are triaged in a way that directs them to the 
most appropriate forum and that those forums are easy to access. 
Considering processes for responding to public questions, ensuring a 
consistent approach that is fit for purpose in the Committee System.  
Citizen Engagement and Involvement – Consider how we can drive 
progress in realising our ambitions for community involvement and 
engagement, taking learning from recent reviews including Involve, the LGA 
Peer Challenge, the Race Equality Commission Report. 
These task and finish groups will actively seek feedback from, and test 
proposals with, citizens and stakeholders; and report into the Governance 
Committee. 
 

Action through Governance 
Committee Work Programme. 

 

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 64



Appendix 2 
 
Summary of review EIA 1153 – Sheffield’s Committee System  
To inform the wider Governance Review 
 
About this paper: 

• EIA 1153 was written to consider the equality implications of the introduction 
of Sheffield’s new committee structure 

• It has been kept under review during the early stages of the committees   
• This summary paper reflects a review of the EIA, set against its original 

assessment and the emerging conclusions of the Governance Review 
• The shortened summary nature of this paper acknowledges the need for 

accessible information, which is an issue the Governance Review itself 
identifies 

 
This paper considers the main themes identified and anticipated by the EIA, whether 
these remain issues and to what extent actions identified through the Governance 
Review are expected to address them. 
 
Conclusions of the EIA review: 

• The EIA review has concluded that almost every issue identified in the 
original EIA is either being addressed through actions identified in the 
Governance Review Implementation Plan or is no longer a concern. 

• The exceptions and recommendations of this EIA review are that: 
1. As part of the work to look into the accessibility of the Town Hall, 

alternative rooms could be considered. 
2. The EIA identified potential impacts of long meetings without breaks. 

This should be reaffirmed through any training for Chairs.    

• The EIA needs to continue to be monitored closely. 
 

 
 
Public engagement 
 
Broad intentions were set out to promote: 
 
Transparency (including providing and enabling accessible and understandable 
information and decision-making) 
 
Comment: 

• This is being addressed through Governance Review Implementation Plan 
(GRIP) actions to ‘Consider how we can make it easier for citizens to know 
what is happening in Policy Committees and how they can get involved.’ 

• In addition, Policy Committee meetings are webcast. 
 

Page 65



Diversity & Equality (taking account of the wide range of people’s protected 
characteristics, socio-economic backgrounds, values and skills, and so that no 
sections of the community are left out) 
 
Comment: 

• The Governance Review identified inconsistent use of Equality Impact 
Assessments in Policy Committee decision-making and has set an action to 
‘Ensure the impact assessment process is robust, transparent and applied 
consistently.’  

• This is being taken forward through an EIA improvement plan to address EIA 
accessibility, quality consistency by introducing an EIA on-line platform, 
training and guidance. 

• The Governance Review also identified the need to provide guidance for 
officers to get sign-off for impact assessments to enable timely publication of 
reports. 

• Governance Committee will be carrying out a task and finish group to look at 
how improve citizen engagement and involvement. It will take learning from 
the reports of Sheffield Race Equality Commission, the LGA Peer Challenge 
and Involve. 

 
Inclusive participation (including scheduling meetings conveniently and providing 
parallel ways for people to take part) 
 
Comment:  

• The rules of decision-making and technical considerations around hybrid 
arrangements restrict participation opportunities to in-person meetings. 

• 42% of respondents in the Governance Review said that meeting locations 
were a problem. The GRIP has identified actions to consider the accessibility 
of the Town Hall through the assessment of AccessAble and to ‘Consider 
options for virtual attendance.’ 

• Public feedback also included comments that the formality of meeting 
environments could be intimidating (which could potentially inhibit 
involvement). As part of the work to look into the accessibility of the 
Town Hall, alternative rooms could be considered. 

• Further GRIP actions identified are concerned with making the public 
questions process clearer and more accessible. 

• It has not been possible or practical to get information about the profile or 
range of people seeking to be involved in Committee meetings. Requesting 
demographic of people attending Policy Committee meetings has not been 
considered reasonable. There is no mechanism for obtaining such information 
from people viewing on-line. 

• The Governance Review acknowledges that the transition to Committees has 
not yet delivered on engaging with communities. Actions are planned through 
the GRIP and the Governance Committee’s work programme over the next 
year to address this.  

• Other GRIP actions address the need to improve the length and readability of 
reports, and to use accessible language; and to publish reports on time (late 
publication reduced people’s ability to engage with the work of the Policy 

Page 66



Committees). Further actions cover clarifying the areas of work covered by 
each Committees and how the public can get involved, in recognition that it 
can be hard find information on the website.  

• And there are additional actions to make the process of submitting public 
questions clearer and more accessible. Mechanisms exist for responding to 
public questions submitted in different languages or formats. 

• No issues were raised through the Governance Review about the conduct of 
meetings (which may affect participation).  
 

Geographical impact  
 
Comment: 

• This consideration applies more to Local Area Committees, which are out of 
scope of the Governance Review.  

• As above, no demographic information is obtained about people participating 
or viewing.  

 
 
Meeting arrangements  
 
The original EIA considered whether the mechanics of meetings could have any 
impacts:  
 
Time spent on Policy Committees (and impact on work outside of meetings, 
managing workloads and work/life balance) 
 
Comment: 

• Actions being taken forward in the GRIP relate to workload and preparation 
time, ensuring that papers are published on time and in an accessible format. 
This is also aimed to ensure meetings are scheduled to enable Members to 
plan and prepare. 

• The Review did not identify any concerns about current meeting lengths.  
• The EIA identified potential impacts of long meetings without breaks. 

This should be reaffirmed through any training for Chairs.    
 
Member workload and support 
 
Comment: 

• The GRIP has identified various actions, including concerning the Chair and 
Co-Chairing roles and support for Members through the use of job-share. The 
Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee Chair role has recently been granted a 
Special Responsibility Allowance.  

• The GRIP is developing guidance on expectations on Members and officers 
about briefings. This supports the principle of Member development, and 
therefore diversity of Members, something taken forward in the Governance 
Committee. 

• There is an annual programme of Member training and induction. 

Page 67



• The Review has reaffirmed the option for Members to receive health and 
wellbeing support through PAM Assist. 

• Members also have access to reasonable adjustments – (e.g. some Members 
may request hard copies of papers) and there is further support Members’ 
business partner support available for IT.  

 
Remote working (including accessibility, adjustments, time for breaks) 
 
Comment:  

• Since the development of the original EIA, the Council has continued to 
develop its approach to remote-working, including hybrid-working. This 
overarching approach to embed working practices, together with HR 
processes and support, helps to meet risks and impacts associated with 
remote-working and Committee meetings.  

• In practical terms, this is more of an issue for briefings and informal 
Committee work that Members may access remotely. Formal Committee 
meetings are required to be in-person. 

 
Partner engagement (in Committee meetings or in pre-engagement) 
 
Comment: 

• Links that existed under the Cabinet model have continued. 
• Engagement has been taking place (e.g. with business advisers in the 

Economic Development & Skill Policy Committee) and there was no feedback 
in the Governance Review suggesting this was a problem  

• Governance Committee work to look at citizen and stakeholder engagement 
will take place over the next year, reflecting on the learning from partners 
involved in Sheffield Race Equality Commission and other reports. 

 
 

Page 68


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 6 Month Review of Governance Arrangements
	Appendix 1 Report and Recommendations
	Appendix 3 – Summary of Recommendations

	Appendix 2 - EIA 1153 - Modern Committee System - 6 month review summary (3)


